School of Medicine

Thesis and Dissertations

2022-09-22

# Proportion of Death and Associated factors among patients admitted to Pediatric Intensive Care unit in Tibebe Ghion Specialized Hospital, Bahir Dar, Ethiopia, 2022

Haymanot, Amare

http://ir.bdu.edu.et/handle/123456789/14599 Downloaded from DSpace Repository, DSpace Institution's institutional repository



## Bahir Dar University College of Medicine and Health Sciences School of Medicine Department of pediatrics and child health

Proportion of Death and Associated factors among patients admitted to Pediatric Intensive Care unit in Tibebe Ghion Specialized Hospital, Bahir Dar, Ethiopia, 2022

By:

Haymanot Amare (MD)

A THESIS REPORT TO BE SUBMITTED TO DEPARTMENT OF PEDIATRICS AND CHILD HEALTH, COLLEGE OF MEDICINE AND HEALTH SCIENCES IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE SPECIALTY PROGRAM OF PEDIATRICS AND CHILD HEALTH

September, 2022

**Bahir Dar, Ethiopia** 

| Principal Investigator | Haymanot Amare (MD,Year II pediatrics and    |  |  |
|------------------------|--|--|--|
|                        | child health resident)                       |  |  |
|                        | Department of pediatrics and child health    |  |  |
|                        | College of medicine and health sciences      |  |  |
|                        | Bahir Dar University                         |  |  |
|                        | Email;haymanotamare@ymail.com                |  |  |
|                        | Tel;+251 921 57 4672                         |  |  |
| Advisors               | Mastewal Ambaw (MD, Assistant professor of   |  |  |
|                        | pediatrics and child health)                 |  |  |
|                        | Department of Pediatrics and Child Health    |  |  |
|                        | College of Medicine and Health sciences      |  |  |
|                        | Bahir Dar University                         |  |  |
|                        | Email;mastewalambaw@gmail.com                |  |  |
|                        | Tel; +251 910 22 0530                        |  |  |
|                        | Taye Abuhay (BSC, MSC, Assistant professor   |  |  |
|                        | of Biostatistics)                            |  |  |
|                        | Department of Epidemiology and Biostatistics |  |  |
|                        | College Medicine and Health Science          |  |  |
|                        | Bahir Dar University, Ethiopia               |  |  |
|                        | E-Mail: <u>tabu0918@gmail.com</u>            |  |  |
|                        | <u>Tel:+251918806940</u>                     |  |  |
| Total Budget           | 44,385                                       |  |  |
| Study period           | June 1 to August 30,2022                     |  |  |
| Study Area             | Tibebe Gion Specialized Hospital, Bahir Dar  |  |  |
|                        | Ethiopia                                     |  |  |

#### Declaration

This is to certify that the thesis report on Proportion of Death and Associated factors among patients admitted to Pediatric Intensive Care unit in Tibebe Ghion Specialized Hospital, Bahir Dar, Ethiopia submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the postgraduate of pediatrics and child health, in Bahir Dar University, is a record of original work carried out by me and has never been submitted to this or any other institution to get any other degree or certificates.

Haymanot Amare Name of the candidate 05/10/2022

<u>Bahir Dar, Ethiopia</u> Place

Date of submission

#### **BAHIR DAR UNIVERSITY**

#### **COLLEGE OF MEDICINE AND HEALTH SCIENCES**

#### DEPARTMENT OF PEDIATRICS AND CHILD HEALTH

I herewith certify that I have supervised, read and evaluated this proposal titled Proportion of Death and Associated factors among patients admitted to Pediatric Intensive Care unit in Tibebe Ghion Specialized Hospital, Bahir Dar, Ethiopia by Haymanot Amare prepared under my guidance. I recommend the dissertation be submitted for defense.

Approved by

| Advisor's name<br>Date | Signature |
|------------------------|-----------|
| Advisor's name<br>Date | Signature |
| Department Head        | Signature |

#### Acknowledgement

First, I would like to thank Bahir Dar University, College of medicine and health science, and department of pediatrics and child health for giving me opportunity to prepare this thesis. Next, I would like to express my deepest gratitude to my advisors Dr. Mastewal Ambaw and Mr Taye Abuhay for their invaluable support and guidance for the preparation of this proposal. Lastly, I would like to say thank you for those health professionals who are working at Tibebe Gion specialized Hospital.

#### Abstract

**Background:** Pediatric intensive care unit, usually abbreviated to PICU, is an area within a hospital which is specialized in the care of critically ill infants and children. It is typically directed by one or more pediatric intensivists or PICU consultants and staffed by doctors, nurses, and respiratory therapists who are specially trained and experienced in pediatric intensive care. There are limited data on pediatric Intensive Care in resource limited countries. Most studies done on patient characteristics and treatment outcome are obtained from developed countries that provide treatment with high level health care professionals and advanced equipment.

**Objective:** To assess Admission pattern, Treatment outcome and associated factors of patients admitted to pediatric Intensive Care unit, Tibebe Gion Specialized Hospital, Bahir Dar, Ethiopia, 2022

**Methods;** A retrospective cross sectional chart review of all patients from January 2020 to August /2022 who were admitted to Pediatric Intensive Care Unit and those who meet the inclusion criteria were used . All the necessary Data were collected from the patients' charts by using the pre-developed data collection format. The data were entered to epidata version 4.6 and then exported to SPSS 25 version software for analysis. Logistic regression analysis was used and those variables with p-value <0.05 at 95% CI were declared as statistically significant.

**Results:** In this study, the proportion of death among patients admitted to PICU was 17.8%. The odds of patients with length of stay less than or equal to one day admission at pediatric intensive care unit (AOR = 6.1; 95% CI (4.9-18), the odds of patients who were on mechanical ventilation (AOR=4.3; 95%CI (1.7-10)) and patients who had use vasopressor (AOR=6; 95%CI (2.9-18) were the factors significantly associated with the outcome of patients at PICU.

**Conclusion and Recommendation:** In this study the proportion of death among patients admitted to PICU was found to be high. The most common causes of admission were complicated meningitis with ICP, and respiratory problem (complicated pneumonia, TB, status asthmatics). The most common cause of death was multi organ failure Length of stay less than one days of admission, use of vasopressor and use of a mechanical ventilator were statistically significant predictors of mortality. It is recommended that The Ethiopian Federal Ministry of Health and the Regional Health Bureau should better to focus on infectious disease prevention and treatment.

We also recommend TGSH to organize PICU with Pediatric Intensivists and respiratory

therapists.

Key words: proportion of death, PICU, Tibebe Ghion, Ethiopia

## Abbreviations

| BLSH | Black Lion Specialized hospital           |
|------|---|
| ETAT | Emergency Triage Assessment and Treatment |
| MV   | Mechanical Ventilator                     |
| NICU | Neonatal Intensive care Unit              |
| PICU | Pediatric Intensive Care Unit             |
| TGSH | Tibebe Ghion Specialized Hospital         |

## **Table of contents**

| Acknowledgementii                                      |
|--|
| Abstractv  |
| Abbreviationsvi  |
| List of Tablesix                                       |
| List of Figuresx                                       |
| 1. Introduction1                                       |
| 1.1. Back ground information1                          |
| 1.2. Statement of the Problem                          |
| 2. Literature Review                                   |
| Conceptual frame work                                  |
| 3. Objectives of the study                             |
| 3.1. General objective                                 |
| 3.2. Specific Objectives                               |
| 4. Methods7  |
| 4.1. Study design                                      |
| 4.3.1. Source population7                              |
| 4.3.2. Study population                                |
| 4.4. Inclusion and exclusion criteria7                 |
| 4.4.1. Inclusion criteria7                             |
| 4.4.2. Exclusion criteria                              |
| 4.5. Measurement of Variables                          |
| 4.5.1. Dependent variable                              |
| 4.5.2. Independent variables                           |
| 4.6. Sample size determination and Sampling procedures |
| 4.7. Data collection procedure                         |
| 4.8. Data processing and analysis                      |
| 4.9. Ethical Considerations                            |
| 5. Results   |

| Discussion                                  |    |
|---|----|
| Conclusion                                  | 19 |
| Recommendation                              | 19 |
| Reference                                   | 20 |
| Annex II Request Form for Ethical Clearance | 24 |

## List of Tables

| Table 1: Patient characteristics children admitted to Tibebe Ghion Specialized Hospital pediatric |
|---|
| intensive care unit BahirDar, Ethiopia10  |
| Table 2: Shows admission pattern of patients admitted at PICU in Tibebe Ghion Specialized         |
| hospital BahirDar Ethiopia, 2022 (n=202)11  |
| Table 3: clinical outcome of patients admitted at PICU in Tibebe Ghion Specialized hospital       |
| BahirDar Ethiopia, 2022 (n=202) 13  |
|   |

## List of Figures

| Figure 1: shows reason for discharge against medical advice among children admitted at PICU in |
|--|
| Tibebe Ghion Specialized hospital BahirDar Ethiopia, 2022 (n=202)14                            |
| Figure 2: shows immediate cause death among children admitted at PICU in Tibebe Ghion          |
| Specialized hospital BahirDar Ethiopia, 2022 (n=202)15   |
| Table 4: factors associated with proportion of death among patients admitted at PICU in Tibebe |
| Ghion Specialized hospital BahirDar Ethiopia, 2022 (n=202)17                                   |

#### 1. Introduction

#### 1.1. Background

Pediatric intensive care unit, usually abbreviated as PICU, is an area within a hospital which is specialized in the care of critically ill infants and children. It is directed by one or more pediatric intensivists or consultants and staffed by doctors, nurses, and respiratory\_therapists who are specially trained and experienced in pediatric intensive care.(1)

Critically ill pediatric patients should be admitted to pediatric critical care beds. Those patients with severe or potentially life-threatening pulmonary or airway disease, life-threatening or unstable cardiovascular disease, unstable neurologic disease, life-threatening or unstable hematologic or oncologic conditions and other serious medical illness are candidates for admission. Postoperative patients requiring frequent monitoring and potentially requiring intensive intervention and trauma patients who need close follow up are also among candidates.(2)

Children continue to face widespread regional and income disparities in their chances of survival. Sub-Saharan Africa continues to be the region with the highest under-five mortality rate in the World—76 deaths per 1,000 live births. In 2019, 1 in 13 children in sub-Saharan Africa died before reaching their fifth birthday—15 times higher than the risk for children born in high-income countries and 20 years behind the world average, which achieved a 1 in 13 rate by 1999. Disparities in child survival abound at the country level as well, where the risk of dying before age five for a child born in the highest mortality country is about 70 times higher than in the lowest mortality country, and all five countries with mortality rates above 100 deaths per 1,000 live births are in sub-Saharan Africa.(3)

Ending preventable child deaths worldwide will require targeted interventions to the age-specific causes of death among children. Despite strong advances in fighting childhood illnesses, infectious diseases, which disproportionately affect children in poorer settings, remain highly prevalent, particularly in sub-Saharan Africa. Globally, infectious diseases, including pneumonia, diarrhea and malaria, remain a leading cause of under-five deaths. Moreover, malnourished children, particularly those suffering from severe acute malnutrition, are at a higher risk of death from these common childhood illnesses. Access to life saving interventions and advanced pediatric intensive care is critical to ensuring steady mortality declines in low- and middle-income countries.(3-5)

#### **1.2.** Statement of the Problem

In developed countries, advanced pediatric intensive care Unit has dramatically improved the prognosis for the critically ill children. Numerous conditions that were previously fatal are now treatable, and many children who previously would have sustained a permanent disability now recover completely. Evidences suggests that the sickest subgroups of critically ill children are less likely to die if treated in the pediatric intensive care unit (PICU) in a tertiary care hospital (6)

Currently, pediatric critical care in low middle-income countries (LMICs) remains in its infancy in most hospitals. The majority of hospitals lack designated intensive care units, healthcare staff trained to care for critically ill children, adequate numbers of staff, and rapid access to necessary medications, supplies and equipment. In addition, most LMICs lack pediatric critical care training programs for healthcare providers or certification procedures to accredit healthcare providers working in their pediatric intensive care units (PICU) and high dependency areas.(7)

In Ethiopia, there is a small number of established PICU. There is also limited resource to give care for the critically ill patient. Therefore the aim of this study is to assess the clinical outcome of patients admitted to the PICU. It will also show the burden of problem and will help in establishing and improving the quality of service given at PICU in our setting.

#### **1.3.** Significance of the study

The aim of this study is to assess the admission pattern, treatment out come and associated factors of patients admitted to pediatric intensive care unit in TGSH. It is very important to know which patients need critical care, how the facility is organized and the outcome of treated patients in a tertiary care hospital. This will help to improve the quality of health care and reduce patient mortality rate.

The findings of this study will also serve as a back ground information for those hospitals who need to establish PICU and will be used as a base line for further study.

#### 2. Literature Review

#### 2.1. Admission pattern

In western countries, Respiratory illnesses (predominantly acute respiratory infections) and congenital anomalies were the most common reasons for admission in PICU hospitals. Epilepsy was the most common neurological disorder (3.4%) of PICU admissions, malignant brain tumors were the most common neoplasms (2.2%) and diabetes was the most common endocrine disorder (1.5%). Injury-related causes accounted for 8.6% of admissions overall, but was proportionally higher (29.0%) in general ICU admissions than for PICU admissions (7.1%)(8, 9)

A Study done in North Africa (Egypt) showed that the most frequent diagnosis at PICU admission was respiratory distress/failure (30.4%), followed by seizures (16.0%) and then altered level of consciousness (14.4%). The most common diagnosis at discharge was complicated gastroenteritis (16.8%) followed by pneumonia (15.2%) and then traumatic brain injury (12%). The majority of the patients had no co-morbidities (76.8%),meanwhile 23.2% of them had co-morbid conditions.(10)

In Eritrean study, Overall the most commonly affected systems were respiratory (50/190 patients 26.3%) followed by gastrointestinal (47/190 patients 24.7%) and neurological system (21/190 patients 11%). The vast majority of PICU admissions were due to medical problems (80.5%) and out of this infectious diseases accounted for 50% of the cases. Twenty-four (12.63%) of the cases were malnourished.(11)

There are studies in Ethiopia, which are done in Black lion Specialized Hospital, University of Gondar and Ayder Referral Hospital. In BLSH, among 317 patients admitted to PICU, the vast majority 71(22.4%) were due to respiratory problems, 62 (19.6%) neurology diseases, 56(17.7) Cardiac disease, 35(11%) Trauma and 32 (9.8%).Renal disease gastrointestinal disease is least admission diagnosis 10 (3.2%).(12)

The study done at University of Gondar showed that the three most common reasons for admission were neurologic 104 (31.1%), infectious 44 (13.3%) and renal 37 (11.2%) disorders. Among the neurologic disorders the commonest diseases were complicated acute bacterial meningitis (37.5%), Guillain-Barre syndrome (17.3%), followed by cerebral malaria and status epilepticus (15.4%). Most of the infectious causes were complicated meningitis (12.1%), and severe sepsis with shock (9.4%).(13)

In Ayder referral hospital, the vast majority of patients admitted to PICU were due to medical problems (85.2%) and non-infectious disease (266/400 patients, 66.5%). Most were admitted due to meningitis (44/400 . 11%), post-operative (43/400 , 10.8%).(14)

#### 2.2. Treatment Outcome and associated factors

There is dramatic Improvement of pediatric intensive care recently with substantial reduction of mortality rate in the developed world. In the USA, mortality rates have fallen from more than 10% in the 1980s to approximately 1.4% in 2014. But this trend was not evident for lower income countries. Systematic analysis which included one hundred eleven studies from developing and developed countries showed that mortality during admission ranged from 1.3 to 50%. The lowest mortality was documented in Finland and the highest record was reported in Rwanda (15)

A study done in Nepal showed Out of 230 admitted children, 29 (12.6%) died, 19 (8.2%) left against medical advice and 5 (2%) were referred to other centers. Forty-one (17.8%) children received mechanical ventilation, among which 23 (56%) improved, 14 (34.1%) died and 4 (9.7%) children were taken away by caretakers against medical advice.(16)

A two-year analysis Admission pattern and outcome in a pediatric intensive care unit of a tertiary care pediatric hospital in Bangladesh showed that out of 119 patients, 81 cases (68.1%) were improved and transferred to the ward or discharged to home. Six cases (5.0%) were transferred to other specialized center for cardiac and neurosurgical management, 6 cases (5.0%) left the hospital against medical advice(LAMA), and 25 (21.0%) died.(17)

A study done in Egypt comparing the outcomes of pediatric patients admitted to PICU with Different Resources, Japan and Egypt showed that the mortality rate was higher in resource limited setup.(18)

According to the study done In Ethiopia, at Black lion, 180(56%) patients were a candidate for mechanical ventilation and 93(29.3%) of them were died. Study participants with comorbid illness account 36 (11.4%). Mortality was higher in those patients without comorbid illness, 86.4%. The percentage of patients discharged from PICU is 24.2% of respiratory disease followed by 21.6% neurology disease. The main cause of death is cardiovascular disease (25.6%) and respiratory disease (20.0%).(12)

Overall, from admitted patients to PICU of Gondar University hospital, 30.9% of the patients died. Among those who died, 67 (65.7%) were males.(13)

The mortality rate of PICU in Ayder was 8.5%, with the most common cause of death being infectious causes mostly affecting respiratory and CNS. The statistically significant predictors of mortality in this study were: the presence of comorbid illness, need for MV, and need for inotropes, low GCS level, infectious disease and duration of ICU stay. The need for ventilation and inotropes indicates that these patients were in an advanced stage of a disease.

## **Conceptual frame work**



Figure 1: conceptual framework on treatment outcome of patients admitted at Tibebe Ghion specialized hospital PICU 2022 (n=202);constructed from various literatures .

## 3. Objectives of the study

### 3.1. General objective

To assess the proportion of death and associated factors among patients admitted to PICU of TGSH, Bahir Dar Ethiopia from January 2020 to May 2022.

#### 3.2. Specific Objectives

- $\checkmark$  To determine the proportion of death and associated factors among patients admitted to PICU.
- ✓ To identify the factors those are associated with the proportion of death among patients admitted to PICU.

#### 4. Methods

#### 4.1. Study design

A retrospective cross sectional study was applied.

#### 4.2. Study area and period

The study was conducted at Tibebe Ghion Specialized Hospital, BahirDar Ethiopia starting from June 1 to August 30, 2022.

Bahir Dar is situated on the southern shore of Lake Tana, the source of the Blue Nile (locally called Abay). The city is one of the ten most beautiful cities in Africa and one of the twelve UNESCO Learning Cities Awardee of 2015. It is located approximately 578 km (360 miles) northwest of Addis Ababa, and an elevation of 1,840 meters (6,036 foot) above sea level. Tibebe Ghion specialized hospital is a newly established Tertiary care Teaching hospital in Bahir Dar City founded in January, 2019. It is located about 10km south from the city center and about 7 km from the new bus station ('Addisu Meneharia') on the high way to Addis Ababa and about 23 km from the Blue Nile Falls (locally called 'Tis Esat' (Smoke of Fire). It has more than 450 bed capacity and serves for more than 94,000 patients per year.

The pediatric and child health unit has about 112 beds divided into Emergency Triage Assessment and treatment (ETAT), Critical and stable Wards, Neonatal Intensive care unit (NICU) and Pediatric Intensive care Unit (PICU).

The pediatric Intensive care Unit is established in January 2020, with 2 beds, 1 functional mechanical ventilator, it gives service by Anesthesiologists, pediatricians, pediatric residents and pediatric nurses.

#### 4.3. **Populations**

#### 4.3.1. Source population

All pediatrics patients admitted to PICU in Tibebe Ghion Specialized Hospital.

#### 4.3.2. Study population

All pediatrics patients in the age range of 28 days to 14 years admitted to pediatrics ICU in Tibebe Ghion Specialized Hospital from January 2020 to August 2022.s

#### 4.4. Inclusion and exclusion criteria

#### 4.4.1. Inclusion criteria

- > Patients admitted to PICU with complete data.
- Age between 29 days and 14 years

#### 4.4.2. Exclusion criteria

- Incomplete Charts
- Death on arrival at PICU

#### 4.5. Measurement of Variables

#### 4.5.1. Dependent variable

> Proportion of death among patients admitted to PICU.

#### 4.5.2. Independent variables

Age, sex, average length of stay in PICU, use of mechanical ventilator, length of stay on mechanical ventilator

#### 4.6. Sample size determination and Sampling procedures

All patients who were admitted at PICU from January 2020 to January 2022 and met the Inclusion criteria included in this study.

#### 4.7. Data collection procedure

A pre-developed data collection format was used to collect data from the patients chart. The data was collected by trained health professionals (trained nurses who work in PICU & pediatric residents). Training was given how to collect the data.

#### 4.8. Data processing and analysis

The collected data was checked by the principal investigator and any incomplete document cleaned, checked before data entry. Then this data was entered to Epi Data version 4.6 and analyzed by using SPSS software version 25. The descriptive analysis was done by simple frequencies and proportions, and the results presented by tables, bar graphs, and pie charts. Binary logistic regression was used to Estimate the crude odds ratio of all independent variables with p-value of <0.25. And Multiple logistic regressions was also used to estimate the adjusted odds ratio of outcome to Control confounders and predict the final predictor at 95% confidence interval and 0.05 level of Significance.

#### 4.9. Ethical Considerations

Ethical clearance was obtained from Bahir Dar University Ethics Review Committee. A support letter was sent to Tibebe Ghion Specialized Hospital. Names were not used in data collecting questionnaire. The data was taken from the medical charts. Confidentiality was maintained by keeping the data collection forms locked in a secure cabinet and the electronic data filled was kept securely in a password protected computer. Data obtained in the course of study was only handled by the research team.

## 4.9.1 Operational Definition

Pediatric intensive care unit- an area within a hospital which is specialized in the care of critically ill infants and children

Pediatric patients-refers to in the age range of 29 days to 14 yrs.

Proportion of death-percentage of death among patients admitted to PICU

Discharge; a patient admitted to PICU that has improved, left against medical advice or referred.

Death -cessation of all biological activities of the patient.

Death on arrival-a patient died in the hospital within 1 hour of stay.

Incomplete chart; a medical record the does not contain full information which is important for this study.

Multi organ failure; a patient who developed more than 3 organ dysfunction or failure.

#### 5. Results

#### 5.1. Socio demographic characteristics of patients admitted in PICU

In this study a total of 208 patients were admitted and 202 included making the response rate 97%. Among this 202 patients 129 (63.9%) of them were male. Most of the study subjects were in the age range of less than 1 year 56 (27.7%). The mean age of admission was  $2.94 \pm SD$  of 1.49 years. The mean PICU length of stay was  $7.30 \pm 7.8$  days. Majority 190 (94.1%) of the patients staying for 1–20 days of admission.

| Variables |            | Frequency (n) | Percent (%) |
|-----------|------------|---------------|-------------|
| Age       | <1 year    | 56            | 27.7        |
|           | 1 - 2 year | 22            | 10.9        |
|           | 2 - 5year  | 44            | 21.8        |
|           | 5-11 year  | 38            | 18.8        |
|           | >11years   | 42            | 20.8        |
| Sex       | Male       | 129           | 63.9        |
|           | Female     | 73            | 36.1        |
| Resident  | Rural      | 129           | 63.9        |
|           | Urban      | 73            | 36.1        |
| Length of | ≤1 day     | 8             | 4           |
| Stay      | 2 to 7     | 134           | 66.3        |
|           | 8 to 14    | 37            | 18.3        |
|           | >14        | 23            | 11.4        |
|           | 1          | 1             | 1           |

Table 1: Patient characteristics children admitted to Tibebe Ghion Specialized Hospital pediatric intensive care unit BahirDar, Ethiopia

#### 5.2. Admission pattern of children

Majority of the pediatric patients 115(56.9%) were admitted from ETAT, 59(29.2%) were transferred from paediatric ward. Most of the patients admitted to PICU 52(25.7%) were due to neurologic disease, ICP, Coma, GBS and 36 (17.8%) of them were due to Respiratory disease. While tetanus, and hepatic failure, hepatic encephalopathy 3(1.5%) were the least admission diagnosis of children at PICU. as shown in Table 2.

| Variables   |                        | Frequency (n) | Percent (%) |
|-------------|------------------------|---------------|-------------|
| Admitted    | Pediatric ward         | 59            | 29.2        |
| from        | NICU                   | 5             | 2.5         |
|             | ETAT                   | 115           | 56.9        |
|             | Surgical               | 23            | 11.4        |
|             | neurologic ICP, Coma,  | 52            | 25.7        |
| Reason for  | GBS                    |               |             |
| Admission   | Respiratory disease    | 36            | 17.8        |
|             | Cardiac failure        | 25            | 12.4        |
|             | Traumatic Brain injury | 14            | 6.9         |
|             | Shock, septic,         | 13            | 6.4         |
|             | hypovolemic,           |               |             |
|             | Upper air way          | 11            | 5.4         |
|             | obstruction            |               |             |
|             | DKA                    | 10            | 5           |
|             | Other *                | 36            |             |
| Comorbidity | yes                    | 97            | 48          |
|             | No                     | 105           | 52          |
| Vasopressor | Yes                    | 41            | 20.3        |
|             | No                     | 161           | 79.7        |

Table 2: admission pattern of patients admitted at PICU in Tibebe Ghion Specialized hospitalBahirDar Ethiopia, 2022 (n=202)

**Other**\*Thoraco-abdominal injury, tetanus, hepatic failure, hepatic encephalopathy, burn with sepsis, airway obstruction, renal (AGN,AKI, Nephritic)

#### **Indication of Mechanical Ventilation**

As shown in figure 2 below 35(17.3%) of children with respiratory failure were used mechanical ventilation and 16 (7.9%) of them were on mechanical ventilation due to increased Cranial Pressure.



Other\*\* cardiac failure, air way obstruction

#### Proportion of death and associated factors among patients admitted to PICU.

In this study out of the total children admitted at pediatric intensive care unit 36(17.8%) of them were died and while 166 (82.2%) of them were discharged. Among the admitted children 62(30.7%) of them needed mechanical ventilation but, the remaining 140(69.3%) of them were not needed mechanical ventilation. From the admitted children 7(3.5%) of them had complication. Seizure 3(1.5%) and parapresis were 2(1%) were the most common types of complication. (Table 2)

Table 2: the proportion of death and associated factors among patients admitted to PICU in Tibebe Ghion Specialized hospital BahirDar Ethiopia, 2022 (n=202)

| Variable             |                      | Frequency (n) | Percent (%) |
|----------------------|----------------------|---------------|-------------|
| Clinical outcome     | Discharged           | 166           | 82.2        |
|                      | Death                | 36            | 17.8        |
| Need of MV           | Yes                  | 62            | 30.7        |
|                      | No                   | 140           | 69.3        |
| Complication         | Yes                  | 7             | 3.5         |
|                      | No                   | 195           | 96.5        |
| Type of complication | Hemiparesis          | 1             | 0.5         |
|                      | Seizure              | 3             | 1.5         |
|                      | Quadri, Para Paresis | 2             | 1.0         |
|                      | Hydrocephalus        | 1             | 0.5         |
| Reason for Referral  | For better treatment | 5             | 2.5         |
|                      | Family Preference    | 2             | 1           |

#### Reason for Discharge against medical advice

In this study out of the discharge against patients (11.4%) of them were due to lack of improvement on the children, 6.9% were due to family preference and 2.5% were due to financial constraint.



Figure 2: shows reason for discharge against medical advice among children admitted at PICU in Tibebe Ghion Specialized hospital BahirDar Ethiopia, 2022 (n=202)

#### Cause of death and associated factors among patients admitted to PICU

In this study from the total death, 41.4% died due to Multi organ failure and the remaining patients died due to cardiorespiratory failure 28% and respiratory failure 17%, respectively.



Figure 3: shows cause of death among children admitted at PICU in Tibebe Ghion Specialized hospital BahirDar Ethiopia, 2022 (n=202)

#### Factors associated with the proportion of death among patients admitted to PICU

On Binary logistic analysis age; sex; length of stay at PICU; use of mechanical ventilator, comorbidity; vasopressor use during admission were variables which are candidate for multivariable Binary logistic regression analysis.

On Multi-variable logistic regression analysis length of stay at hospital, use of vasopressor and use of mechanical ventilation were found to have significant association with mortality of patients. The odds of patients with length of stay less than or equal to one day were more than six times higher odds of proportion for death than those with length of stay more than one days admission at pediatric intensive care unit (AOR = 6.1 (4.9-18); 95% CI (P=0.002). the odds of patients who were on mechanical ventilation have more than four times higher odds of death than their counterparts (AOR=4.3; 95%CI (1.7-10) p= $0.002^*$ ). Similarly patients who had use vasopressor were more than 6 times more likely to be died than their counterparts (AOR=6; 95%CI (2.9-18) P=0.001). (Table 4).

|            |            | Outcon | ne         | COR             | AOR            | <b>P-Value</b> |
|------------|------------|--------|------------|-----------------|----------------|----------------|
| Variable   | Category   | Death  | Discharged | (95%CI)         | (95%CI)        |                |
| Age (yr.)  | <1 year    | 10     | 46         | 2.8 (0.72,10)   | 2.7(0.53-14)   | 0.229          |
|            | 1 - 2 year | 5      | 17         | 3.8 (0.81, 17)  | 2.3(0.35-15)   | 0.374          |
|            | 2 - 5year  | 10     | 34         | 3.8 (0.97, 15)  | 3.7(0.70-20)   | 0.121          |
|            | 5-11 year  | 8      | 30         | 3.4 (0.84, 14)  | 2.6(0.49-14)   | 0.255          |
|            | >11years   | 3      | 39         | 1               | 1              |                |
| Sex        | Male       | 19     | 110        | 1               | 1              |                |
|            | Female     | 17     | 56         | 1.7(0.84-3.64)  | 2.2(0.83-5.8)  | 0.111          |
| Length of  | <1 day     | 7      | 1          | 4 (4, 12)       | 6.1(4.9-18)    | 0.002*         |
| Stay       | 2 to 7     | 24     | 110        | 1.4 (0.40, 5.2) | 1.8(0.45-7.3)  | 0.390          |
| (days)     | 8 to 14    | 2      | 35         | 0.38(0.05,2.4)  | 0.43(0.06-3.1) | 0.403          |
|            | >14 day    | 3      | 20         | 1               | 1              |                |
| Mechanic   | Yes        | 20     | 43         | 3.6 (1.7, 7.7)  | 4.3(1.7-10)    | 0.002*         |
| al         | No         | 16     | 123        | 1               | 1              |                |
| Ventilatio |            |        |            |                 |                |                |
| n          |            |        |            |                 |                |                |
| Comorbidit | Yes        | 89     | 17         | 1.3 (0.91, 3.9) | 1.4(0.55-3.6)  | 0.469          |
| У          | No         | 77     | 19         | 1               |                |                |
| Vasopresso | Yes        | 20     | 21         | 8.6 (3.8, 19)   | 6.2(2.9-18)    | 0.001*         |
| r used     | No         | 16     | 145        | 1               | 1              |                |

Table 4: factors associated with proportion of Death among children admitted at PICU in Tibebe Ghion Specialized hospital BahirDar Ethiopia, 2022 (n=202)

#### Discussion

This study found that the proportion of death was 17.8% which is comparable with the previously reported mortality rate 2.1 to 41% (10, 11, 17-20). Developing countries have the highest mortality rates (10, 18) due to lack of resources and transportation access. The result of the current mortality rate was relatively higher when compared to recent studies in Nepal (19), and Ethiopia Addis Ababa (9) which were 12.6%, and 8.5%, respectively. This is due to a lack of resources, which makes the current result higher similar to other resource-limited countries. Additionally, the PICU in the current study in which critically ill children are being referred from different parts of the town. There is no full access transportation for critically ill patients, due to this critically ill patients were come lately which leads to poor patient outcomes. The lack of trained Pediatric intensivist also could be a reason for the high PICU mortality rate in our setting as reported by a previous systematic review study which showed low-intensity (no intensivist or elective intensivist consultation) ICU was reported to have a higher ICU mortality rate as compared to the high-intensity (mandatory intensivist consultation or closed ICU) groups (21).

On the other hand the result of the current study was lower than study done in other sub-Saharan countries (40–42%), Gondar (30.9%), Black lion Specialized Hospital (21.1%). This might be due to difference in study area and study setting.

Length of stay less than one day at hospital, use of vasopressor and need of mechanical ventilation were the factor as significantly associated with the outcome of patients at PICU.

The odds of mortality were 6.1 times higher in patients who stayed less than one day than who stayed more than two weeks. In a similar study done in University of Gondar, Among all deaths, 51% occurred within 24 hours of stay .This could be due to patients who come with complication and serious illness might be died early before stabilization and further work up.

The odds of mortality were 4.3 fold higher in patients who was in a mechanical ventilator than not being in a mechanical ventilator. This could be explained by advanced illness of patients and the scarcity of a trained pediatrics intensivist. This finding is similar to studies done in Nepal and Addis Ababa (9, 20).

The odds of developing mortality were 6.2 times higher in a patient who was on vasopressor during admission .this finding is also similar with a study done in black Lion which showed the odds of mortality was 10 times higher than those who didn't use vasopressor. This might be because of the absence of organ support or multi organ failure due to severe sepsis, and management for post-cardiac arrest care in the transferring units or in the case of our setting.

## Conclusion

In this study the proportion of death was found to be high (17.8%). The most common causes of admission were complicated meningitis with ICp, and respiratory problem (complicated pneumonia, TB, status asthmatics). The most common cause of death is multi organ failure. Length of stay less than one days of admission, use of vasopressor and use of a mechanical ventilator were statistically significant predictors of mortality.

This higher death proportion needs immediate intervention. Studies have shown that well equipping and trained staffed PICU with intensivist and admitting the patient and follow up improve patient outcomes.

#### Recommendation

We recommend The Ethiopian Federal Ministry of Health and the Regional Health Bureau to focus on infectious disease prevention and treatment.

We also recommend TGSH to work further on expansion of PICU and organize it with Pediatric Intensivists and respiratory therapists.

#### Reference

1.Frankel LRD, Joseph V. In Bernstein, Daniel; Shelov, Steven P. In Bernstein, Daniel; Shelov, Steven P "Pediatric Intensive Care, 2003:541.

2. American Academy of Pediatrics CoHCaPSotSoCCM. Guidelines and levels of care for pediatric intensive care units. Pediatrics 1993;92:;:166–75.

3.Troster EJ LC, Oliveira CAC de, Abramovici S, Bass LM. The epidemiological profile of Pediatric Intensive Care Center at Hospital Israelita Albert Einstein. Einstein (São Paulo. 2012;10(1):16–21. .

4.Tina M. Slusher, Andrew W. Kiragu, Louise T. Day, Ashley R. Bjorklund,,† Arianna Shirk, 4 Colleen Johannsen, and Scott A. Hagen. Pediatric Critical Care in Resource-Limited Settings. frontiers in pediatrics. 2018;6.

5.UNICEF. Association between ethnicity and under-5 mortality Analysis of data from demographic surveys from 36 low- and middle-income countries. March 2020.

6.UNICEF. National, regional, and global levels and trends in neonatal mortality between 1990 and 2017, with scenario-based projections to 2030: A systematic analysis. UNICEF. May 2019.

7.UNICEF. Changes in the spatial distribution of the under-five mortality rate: Small-area analysis of 122 DHS surveys in 262 subregions of 35 countries in Africa. UNICEF. January 2019.

8.Maria S AK, Amna W, Muhammad S. Clinical profile and outcome of the patients admitted in PICU in tertiary hospital. he Professional Medical Journal. 19/11/2020:548-51.

9.Ibinabo L CSA, , Jennifer R. Bowen and Christine L. Roberts. Pediatric admissions that include intensive care: a population-based study. BMC. (2018) (18:264

10.Nouran B. AbdAllah a, Alaa El-Din Zeitoun a, Fattah MGE-DA. Adherence to standard admission and discharge criteria and its association with outcome of pediatric intensive care unit cases in Al-Ahrar Hospital Zagazig. Egyptian Pediatric Association Gazett. 2016;64:111-9.

11.Mahmud M ST. patterns and treatment outcomes of pediatric intensive care unit admissions in 2013, orotta national referral hospital, asmara, eritrea. International Journal of Pharmaceuticals and Health care Research 2020;08(04):27-33.

12.Yaphet n. Disease Pattern, Outcome And Associated Factor Of Patient Admitted In Pediatric Intensive Care Unit At Tikur Anbessa Specialized Teaching Hospital, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia. 2019:1-49.

13.Ashenafi T, Biniyam C, Tigist b. h admission pattern and outcome in a pediatric intensive care unit of gondar university hospital Ethiop Med J, 2019; Vol. 57.

14.Haftu H TH, Araya M,Teklit G. Assessment of pattern and treatmentoutcome of patients admitted to pediatric intensive care unit, Ayder Referral Hospital,Tigray, Ethiopia. BMC. May 24,2018;Article number: 339 (2018):1-6.

15.Claire P BM, Genee P, Mary S, Andrew A. Outcomes following admission to paediatric intensive care: A systematic review. Journal of Pediatrics and Child health. 12 February 2021;57,(3):328-58.

16.Shah GS SB, Thapa A, Shah L, Mishra OP Admission patterns and outcome in a pediatric intensive care unit in Nepal. . Br J Med Med 4(30):4939–45. 2014.

17.Md. Shafiul Hoque MAHM, A.S.M. Nawshad Uddin Ahmed. Admission pattern and outcome in a paediatric intensive care unit of a tertiary care paediatric hospital in Bangladesh A two-year analysis. DS (Child) H J 2012;;; 28 (1) 14-9.

18.Rania G. Abdelat MMM, Ramadan A. Mahmoud " Mohamed A. M. Bakheet MG, and Satoshi Nakagawa. Characterization and Outcome of Two Pediatric Intensive Care Units with Different Resources. Hindawi. 17 march 2020;Volume 2020, Article ID 5171790:, 1-6 pages.

| Annex I; data collec    | ction format     |                   |                     |                   |
|-------------------------|------------------|-------------------|---------------------|-------------------|
| Part I Socio demograph  | hic patient data |                   |                     |                   |
| Date                    |                  |                   |                     |                   |
| Patient ID number       |                  |                   |                     |                   |
| Study number            |                  |                   |                     |                   |
| 1. Age                  |                  |                   |                     |                   |
| 2. Sex                  |                  |                   |                     |                   |
| 3. Address of the patie | ent              |                   |                     |                   |
| II. PATTERN FOR DI      | SEASE            |                   |                     |                   |
| 1. Admitted to PICU f   | rom              |                   |                     |                   |
| A. pediatric wards B    | B. NICU C. pe    | diatric Emergency |                     |                   |
| 2. Reasons for admiss   | sion to PICU     |                   |                     |                   |
| 1                       |                  | 2                 |                     |                   |
| 3                       |                  |                   |                     |                   |
| 3. Admission diagnosis  | S                |                   |                     |                   |
| III. Associated Factors |                  |                   |                     |                   |
| 4. Co-morbidity         |                  |                   |                     |                   |
| 1. Yes                  | 2.No             |                   |                     |                   |
| 4.1 If yes .Which come  | orbid illness    |                   |                     |                   |
| 1. Cardiac 2            | 2.renal          | 3.respiratory     | 4.neurologic        | 5.other (specify) |
| 5. Date of admission in | n PICU//         | // (DD/MM/YY)     | )                   |                   |
| 6. Date of transfer     | -//// (DD/M      | M/YY)             |                     |                   |
| 7. Length of stay in PI | [CU              |                   |                     |                   |
| 8. Did the patient need | l mechanical ven | ntilator (MV)?    |                     |                   |
| 1. Yes                  |                  | 2.No              |                     |                   |
| 8.1 If yes, was the put | on MV?           |                   |                     |                   |
| 8.2 If yes, Length of s | stay on mechanic | cal ventilator    |                     |                   |
| 8.3. If no, why MV wa   | s not used?      |                   |                     |                   |
| 1. Lack of MV 2         | innapropriatly f | unctioning MV     | 3.other reason (spe | cify)             |
| Part III .OUTCOME       |                  |                   |                     |                   |
| 1. Patient outcome      |                  |                   |                     |                   |

- A. Discharged from PICU
- B. Referred to another health facility
- C. Left without medical advice
- D. Death
- 1.2. If referred, what is reason for referral.....
- 1.3. If left against medical advice, what is the reason for against medical advice
- 1.4. If the outcome if death
  - 1. Immediate cause of death 2.underlying illness

#### **Annex II Request Form for Ethical Clearance**

Date.....

#### To BDU/CMHS Ethics Committee

Subject: To get ethical clearance for my research

I am Dr.Haymanot Amare, 2nd year pediatrics and child health resident in Bahir dar University College of Medicine and Health sciences. I kindly request your office to have ethical clearance to conduct a research on Admission pattern, treatment outcome and associated factors of patients admitted to pediatric Intensive Care unit, Tibebe Gion Specialized Hospital for the partial fulfillment of specialty program in pediatrics and child health. Data will be extracted using a prepared questionnaire; confidentiality of records will be kept.

#### With regards

Dr.Haymanot Amare (year II pediatrics and Child Health Resident)